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AIRTEL MONEY TANZANIA LIMITED

REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

1. INTRODUCTION

The Directors submit their report, together with the financial statements of Airtel Money Tanzania Limited (“the
Company” or “Airtel Money”) for the year ended 31 December 2024, which disclose the affairs of the Company.

2. AIRTEL MONEY TANZANIA LIMITED PROFILE

The Company is a Tanzania’s leading Mobile Money company providing a wide range of services for consumers
including money transfer, bill payments, Government to people (G2P), Business to People (B2P) payments,
airtime recharge commission. Overall customers 7.9 million (2023: 7.6 million).

3. INCORPORATION AND REGISTRATION

The Company is incorporated in Tanzania under the Companies Act, 2002 as a private Company limited by shares.
The Company was officially incorporated on 10 June 2016 and has been granted electronic money issuer license
No. LB 422/535/11 by the Bank of Tanzania (BOT) on 18 September 2018.

4. NATURE OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS

The principal activities of the Company is to carry on business of “The Registered Trustees of Airtel Money Trust
Fund ("AMTF)” and to deal in electronic money, electronic cash, electronic currency, digital money or digital
currency and all other kinds of mobile electronic money transfer products and services related to Airtel Money.

5. CORE PURPOSE

The core purpose is to provide ‘instant secure borderless mobile money services.” The Company aims at playing
a pivotal role in ensuring financial inclusion of the Tanzanian population by expanding the opportunities for
people to access and use financial services. Through core business of providing mobile financial services, The
Company is making a valuable contribution in bridging the financial inclusion gap which is a key pillar of the
Tanzanian national digital economy agenda.

6. COMPANY STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

The Company strategic priorities are crafted to drive growth through new business opportunities and innovations
while protecting core business with the priorities grouped into the following key strategic pillars:

i. Win with Airtel Money distribution.
ii. Win with Fintech.
iii. Win with technology.
iv. Win with new markets; and
v. Win with quality customer acquisition and partnerships.

The Company has an excellent purpose-led business model and a compelling track-record of effective
management and guality execution in delivering on strategy.

7. OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Performance highlights

Details of the results for the year are set out in the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Revenue

Service revenue increased by 21.4% to TZS 330,700 million. The growth was driven by strong results from money
transfer and airtime recharge commission, which contributed 82% of service revenue.

Money transfer revenue increased by 19.4% to TZS 230,573 million driven by both customer base growth of
9% and mobile money average revenue per user (ARPU) growth of 12%.

Bill and merchant payments revenue increased by 26.4% to TZS 43,867million driven by transaction volume
increase of 15% and transaction value increase by 26%.
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7.

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Easy recharge commission revenue increased by 35.1% to TZS 40,361 million driven by an increase in
transaction value by 36% which is offset by decrease in price by 1%.

Other fees and charges increased by 7.6% to TZS 15,899 million driven by increase in loan service revenue by
from TZS 2,533 million to TZS 4,896 million.

The expansion of the Company’s distribution networks, particularly exclusive channels of Airtel Money
branches and kiosks, supported customer base growth of 8%.

The Airtel Money ARPU growth of 13% was driven by transaction value per customer growth of 14% to TZS
603,116 per customer per month.

By enriching Airtel Money ecosystem, the Company continued accelerating payments services including
‘business to consumers’, ‘consumer to businesses and the merchant payment solution. In the year, these
payments options processed over TZS 57.28 trillion (2023: TZS 46.77 trillion) in value, an increase of over
22%. The Company continued driving adoption of merchant payment solution to reach over 49,428
merchants who accept payments through Airtel Money, under the ‘Lipa kwa simu’ service. In addition to
generating revenue for the Company, Airtel Money service is at the core of purpose-led strategy to support a
financial inclusion agenda, contributing positively to the country’s social-economic development, as well as
individual customers and agents” personal finances. It was encouraging that Airtel Money customers
increased by 0.63 million in the past twelve months to 8 million, up 9% growth. The total number of
transactions grew 28% with value transacted increasing by 22%, to an average of aver TZS 4.7 trillion per
month.

During the year, The Company also continued to deepen financial inclusion by launching innovative products

‘and services. These included the Airtel Money group savings product, Airtel money micro insurance,

expansion of international money transfer services to an addition 8 SADC (Southern African Development
Community) corridors, that contributed to the 9% growth in value of money sent through IMT service. The
growth trends in Airtel Money performance indicators sets up a positive outlook for the future of Airtel Money
business and hence contribution towards financial inclusion.

Total expenses

Total expenses (excluding depreciation and amortisation) of the Company increased 16.7% to TZS 177,065
million due to increase in revenue. Direct expenses increased by 16.1% in line with the increase in revenue,
the compedtitive pressure led to higher commission to the distribution channels as well as interconnect costs.
The savings realized marketing cost and customer care were offset by cost pressures in staff expenses and
other operating expenditure. Employee cost increased by 45%. Staff expenses increased because of
enhancing distribution in the market, hence more staff were employed during the vear.

Cperating Profit

Earnings Before Interest Tax Depreciation and Amortisation (EBITDA) increased by 28% to TZS 150,038 million
(2023 : 117,454 million), as a result of growth in service revenue and cost containment measures which
helped to mitigate pressures on expenses. The underlying performance reflected strong growth in service
revenue and diligent cost containment.

Profit after tax (PAT)
Profit after tax increased by 28.3% to TZS 104,995 million driven by an increase in EBITDA.
Capital expenditure

During the year, capital expenditure was TZS 6,543 million spent on investments made in network, IT systems
and rollout of AMB (Airtel Money Branch) and KIOSK. (2023: TZS 1,845 million).



AIRTEL MONEY TANZANIA LIMITED

REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

8.

10.

BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

The current operating context is a highly competitive, and innovative environment, with several players
constantly innovating financial services solution to meet customer demand. This coupled with a strong
regulatory oversight creates a dynamic operating context that presents both demanding challenges, and
potentially rewarding commercial opportunities for growth. By ensuring effective execution of strategic
commitments, The Company believe it is well positioned to manage the risks and realize the opportunities
associated with industry.

MACRO-ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

Tanzania’s economy has shown signs of economic recovery following the impact of the pandemic, with
tourism, mining and other services all benefiting from the lifting of global pandemic-related restrictions. This
recovery has been impacted however by global and local headwinds, including the war in Ukraine, a volatile
global macro-economic environment, and a shortfall in rainfall negatively impacting local electricity
production and agriculture. The International Monetary Fund (IMF) has projected economic growth for the
country of 5.4% in 2024, with inflation expected to surpass the Bank of Tanzania’s target and reach around
3.1% by year-end despite price subsidies on fuel and fertilizer. The current account deficit is projected to
remain elevated in 2024 amid the uncertain global environment. In the medium term, real Gross Domestic
Product (GDP) growth is projected to rebound to around 5%, inflation to return to less than 5%, and the
current account deficit to moderate as the global shocks subside and the authorities” reforms start to pay off.
The war in Ukraine has impacted global food and energy prices, heightened inflationary pressures, and
contributed to enhanced market uncertainty and volatility, all of which is constraining consumer spend and
general investor confidence.

REGULATORY AND POLICY ENVIRONMENT

The telecommunications industry in Tanzania and in all other markets continues to face intensified regulatory
scrutiny. Regulators have increased regulatory scrutiny due to the significant contribution of the telecoms
sector to the socio-economic development. In Tanzania, there has been various regulatory and policy
developments in financial year 2023/2024 from the two main regulators — the Tanzania Communications
Regulatory Authority (TCRA) for Airtel Tanzania PLC services, and the Bank of Tanzania (“BoT” or the “Bank”)
covering digital financial services.

The Company has seen favorable regulatory environment and improved levels of dialogue in financial year
2023/2024 which resulted in removal of fees and charges in the draft guidelines on fees and charges for non-
bank payment systems providers. The most significant recent regulatory and policy developments are listed
below:

a. Real Time Supervision Information System (RTSIS);

BoT embarked on a project to develop a data collection solution named Real Time Supervision Information
System (RTSIS). Prior project kick-off, several engagements were conducted with MNOs, and on 3 January
2023, the Bank shared the RTSIS project documentation for immediate adoption and development. The
project implementation plan indicated that all Electronic Money Issuers (EMIs) were required to complete
the development of all the Application Programming Interface (APls) by 31 August 2023. However, despite
the set deadline, majority of mobile operators were yet to fully implement the project and requested for
extension of time as the result the project was effectively implemented in year 2024. User Acceptance Test
(UAT) with Banks was conducted from October 2024. UAT exercise with (EMIs) is expected in January 2025.

b. Guidelines on fees and charges for Non-Bank Payment Systems Providers 2024:
The guidelines on fees and charges became effective from 16 July 2024 with below key highlights:

Removed proposed caps on fees and charges which were included in the draft guidelines on fees and
charges for non-bank payment systems providers, 2024.

i All new fees and charges as well as upward revision should have BOT approval pricr implementation.

i Notify the Bank for above the line campaigns.
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10. REGULATORY AND POLICY ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED)
c. Tanzania Instant Payment System (TIPS) rules, 2024

11.

In April 2024, BOT issued Tanzania Instant Payment System (TIPS) rules, 2024.

The Rules became operational with effect from 1 May 2024. BOT is proposing to enhance APl to accommodate
IMT transactions to allow them through TIPS.

On fees; Appendix X of the Tips rules has introduced:

i. 0.69% interchange fee P2P use case (wallet to wallet) only and not other use cases such as Business to

person or business to business.
Zero (0%) fee for all other use cases including Person to Merchant use case interchange.

d. Circular on interest distribution

Recognizing the need for a standardized approach for interest distribution to wallet holders by Electronic
Money Issuers (EMIs), on 1 November 2024, the Bank issued a directive to all EMIs and trust entities that:

The interest accrued/earned from trust accounts for distribution shall be calculated based on the daily
outstanding balance of each individual wallet during the interest-earning period, rather than the wallet's

activity level; and
EMIs and trust entities must determine the frequency of interest distribution and implement it

consistently, ensuring that distributions occur at least twice a year.

AMTL is compliant with the above regulatory requirements.

The company has responded to regulatory changes as follows:

a. The Company continuously monitor laws, regulations, and policy changes and engage regularly with the
TCRA, BOT and other regulatory authorities to ensure compliance with all relevant regulatory
requirements.

b. The Company has invested significantly in compliance awareness training across the company and in
distribution channel to ensure that business units are sensitized, including through training programs
such as the ‘Doing What is Right’ Programmed on legislative and regulatory requirements, supported by
an annual self-assessment.

¢. The Company has a rebust compliance management system which helps to track, stay aware and comply
with all legal and regulatory requirements.

d. The Company has a robust governance process and a strong culture of compliance across the company,
administered through the dedicated Risk and Compliance department, which is charged with
responsibility for monitoring, evaluating, and managing risks across the company.

e. The Company maintains proactive relations with government and relevant regulatory bodies and tax
authorities, informed by a shared understanding of the need for inclusive economic development and
the important contribution of a profitable business sector. These engagements are undertaken
individually, and through the Tanzania Mobile Network Operators’ Association (TAMNOA).

COMPETITION

The Company operates in one of the most competitive markets in Africa, currently six operators have been
issued with the Electronic Money Issuers license, five Mobile Network Operators (MNQs) providing mobile
financial services coupled with an additional none telecom licensed providers. The market has seen the ever-
increasing involvement of banks in the mobile financial services space with the emergence of SIM banking,
agency banking and bank led merchant payment solutions. The three largest Mobile Network Operators (MNO)
competitors are continuing to drive very aggressive customer acquisition campaigns, price discounting, and
distribution innovations.
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11. COMPETITION (CONTINUED)

The Company has responded as follows:

a.

To remain agile in identifying and realizing opportunities for innovation. The Company continues to
innovate and launch products and solutions like micro insurance, group savings, that meet customer’s
needs. The Company continues to benchmark and maonitor existing and new competitors and are
constantly exploring opportunities for innovative partnerships.

To compete effectively through delivering a differentiated customer experience, The Company maintain
a strong focus on the strength and reach of distribution network, the quality of customer support
channels, simplicity of products and access channels, competitive pricing and guality of services, backed
by strong brand reputation.

The Company continues to engage with the government through the regulator and other relevant
stakeholders on the importance of price stability to support investments and push the cashless agenda.
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12. COMPANY’S KEY RELATIONSHIPS

Airtel Money ability to deliver long-term value depends on the contribution and activities of a range of different
stakeholders, and on the quality of relationship with them. In the table below briefly outline those stakeholder
groups who have a substantive impact on ability to create value; outline their contribution to value creation,
means of engaging with them, and the stakeholders’ identified priority interests relating to business activities.

Money branches and Airtel Kiosks

Customer feedback process after
service for obtaining feedback (Net
Promoter  Score) and  Cross
functional team formulates action
for the areas required improvement.

Stakeholder value Means of engagement Priority interests

Customers: Self-Care channels through Airtel| « Confidentiality and privacy of customer

Bt he - Bale . far Appllcaﬁon, US:SVDR and Interactive g]formatlon.

revenue  growth by ;onc.elrrt\e/lsp;nse( ). -S.ustf)[.lzergmp(;werment’

purchasing products and OCIEI. eaia « Simplification o custo.mers process .

aryicas. Website « Feedback on service areas require
Call centers, Retail Shops, Airtel| improvement.

« Customized customer experience

« Better value offerings (affordability).

« Customer satisfaction

« Reliable and best data networks with wider
coverage.

« Wide coverage on availability of customer
service touchpoints

« Tailored business customers sclutions as
per needs.

Government and
regulators:
Provide access to

spectrum and operating
licenses, the basis for
creating value.

Participation in public forums.
Engagement on draft regulations and
bills.

Engagement  through  industry
bodies.
Publication of policy engagement
papers.

Partnering on key programmes such
as inclusive education, inclusive
growth in agriculture, and inclusive
climate action.

= Regulatory compliance on issues such as
customer registration, service quality,
price, security and privacy, and safety,
health and environmental performance.

e Participating and promoting opportunities
for economic development.

« Contribution to the tax base.

« Industry development.

« Fair market development.

tnvestors and
hareholders:
Provide the financial

capital needed to sustain
and grow.

Investor  interactions, including
conferences, meetings, and
roadshows.

Annual and interim results.
Quarterly reports.

Annual reports,

Preliminary announcement call and
Annual General Meeting (AGM).
Investor relations page in website.

» Responsible practices to manage risks and
opportunities and ensure financial growth.

« Sound corporate governance practices.

« Transparent executive remuneration.

« Improved liquidity of shares.

« Stable dividend policy.
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12. COMPANY’S KEY RELATIONSHIPS (CONTINUED)

Stakeholder value

Means of engagement

Priority interests

Employees: Provide the
skills and inputs needed to
realise vision.

Intranet portal for employees, ‘Hive’
Newsletter and Airtel Tanzania com as
an electronic communication to
employees.

Ombudsman hotline (Employees to
air their voice).

Airtel WhatsApp group — for Quick
updates
Leadership
programme,
Early Career Program-GT

Mobility program (Skills exchange
programme across Airtel Africa &
India)

Engagement surveys.

Online trainings Platform.

Executives’” discussions — ‘ExCo
meeting and Leadership Conclave’.
Health and welfare consultations as
needed.

Townhall meeting — Quarterly

Development

« Create a conducive environment for
career growth.

« Skills development.

« Competitive remuneration.

« Mobility programme for knowledge
sharing across Airtel Africa and India.

« Mentoring and Coaching programme —
Women Leadership mentorship and
capability programme.

« Airtel Benefit awareness — for better
understanding  of  various  reward
structures.

« Employee team building programme —
Fun Friday, TGIF

« OHS programmes — Fire awareness, first
aiders.

« Safe working environment.

Suppliers:

Ensuring availability of
goods and services for
customer needs in line
with business aspirations

.

Supplier forums.
Ongoing site visits.

Procurement (including

tendering).

processes

Audits.

* Prompt payment.
« Ethical sourcing process.

« Fair share of orders and services

awarded.

« Compliance to statutory requirement of
the Republic including tax obligations,
health and safety and general employee
welfare.

Communities:

Provide a social license to
operate and strengthen
the socioeconomic
context,

Public participation where new base
stations are needed.

Corporate  Social
in partnership with

Airtel  Money
Responsibility
communities.

Social media pages

« Access to communication services and
services such as finance, health, and
education.

e Free-to-use social media, health,

education, and job sites.




AIRTEL MONEY TANZANIA LIMITED

REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
12. COMPANY'S KEY RELATIONSHIPS (CONTINUED)

Stakeholder value Means of engagement Priority interests
Business partners:| « Store, channel partner and retail| » Fair treatment.
Custodians of brand, and VISHS. « Quick actionable market feedback

key to delivering the best
customer experience.

Management SnERBSMmENts: « Top management involvement with

One-on-one business meetings. customers.

Training sessions on new products and| « Making it simpler and quicker to deal with
services us.

Being heard as partners.

Media: « Face-to-face and telephonic| « Being informed of key activities and
Have a potentially engagement. offerings.

significant  influence « Interviews with key executives. = Transparency on performance.

en : ather * Media releases. » Evidence of responsible  business
stakeholders PR

percepﬁons_ « Roundtables. P '

Product launches.
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13. HOW THE COMPANY SUSTAIN VALUE

The Company invests in resources and relationships impacting on value as detailed below:

People, culture and governance: Human and intellectual capital

Critical inputs (2024)

Company activities to sustain
value

Results of Company activities (2024)

e 53 employees (35 permanent
and 18 contractual staff) against
43 employees during financial
year 2023

* A vibrant Board of Directors
and strong governance systems.
* Experienced Executive Team

* An agile, performance-based,
and strong Airtel culture of ways
of working.

» Customer centric with efficient
and effective services as per
Service Level Agreement (SLA).

*A robust sustainability strategy

to enhance diversity and
inclusion at workplace.

*TZS 8.9 million invested in
employee training and
development, including
leadership development
programme and mentorship
programme.

sStreamlined business processes
implemented across business
departments.

eGraduate trainee and internship

programme  to  strengthen
talent.
sEngagement programmes to

foster a strong culture and
ensure consistent delivery of
targets.

*Employee career growth
opportunities with Competitive
remuneration.

«Build collaborative relationship
with service delivery contractors
and suppliers.

eNumerous initiatives to further
strengthen  the  Company’s
reputation as an employer of
choice.

Increased and maintained employee
commitment, morale, skills, and
diversity through:

eAttracted right employees
(candidates) with right skills.

eTZS 4.2 billion in wages and benefits
(TCTC).

#33% female representation in senior
managerial levels.

s|ncreased employee’s satisfaction
rate.

*Qutstanding in OSHA compliance
(Best working environment award for
the last two years.

*80% engagement index score in
Willis Towers Watson survey

o owest staff turnover at Average of
2.7% for last three years.
«Reasonable number of staff.
laccessing the Employee Assistance
Program (EAP).

*No work-related fatalities for the ten
\years.

Trade-offs: While focusing on developing business and embracing the competition, Airtel Money Human
Resources is using a well-designed strategy to support quality and high-performance work which, in turn,
promotes a company’s vision, mission, values and objectives. These strategies are used as a roadmap of
bettering organizational challenges with people centric solutions, focus on new technologies such as driving
a company to digital edge and effectively harnessing the role of artificial intelligence, diversity, equity and
inclusion, remote working, and emotional wellbeing at the forefront. The Company’s commitment is to put its
employees at the forefront and become the best asset; their performance is well managed coupled with the
well-types of rales required of the business and most importantly, identifying what capabilities, skills and
knowledge is required of individuals to be successful in specific roles. Behind all these programmers, there is
a robust reward and compensation process that ensures employees are correctly, rewarded and timely
recognition for their commitment and efforts. Weighing a Company’s financial gains against human capital
and social costs is a continuing potential trade-off.

10
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13.

HOW THE COMPANY SUSTAIN VALUE (CONTINUED)

Quality relationships with key stakeholders: Social and relationship capital

Critical inputs (2024)

Company activities to sustain value

Results of Company activities (2024)

e 7.9 million 30 days active
customers, 8% increase from
prior year.

Constructive engagement with
regulators, informed by mutual
trust.

Sustained levels of investor

confidence.

Positive partner and supplier
relationships.

Trusted brand and reputation.

« Continued investment in ensuring
agent distribution and IT systems
quality, strong positive customer
experience, and segmented products

and services.

« Continued to innovate and provide
relevant new fintech products and
services.

e Regular and frank engagement with
regulators, pursuing full compliance.

« Continuing to participate actively in
government’s  financial  inclusion
agenda.

« Inclusive customer care initiatives.

« Credible governance processes.

» Corporate social responsibility

programs.

o Positive customer relations.

e Increased financial services use

cases for the customers.

Improved access to Airtel money
services, through the increased roll
out of Airtel Money branches.

Improved access to support by

implementing customer Self-care
channels.
« Further progress in developing

smarter processes and services that

prevent bad experiences (auto-
settlements).
» Number of customers benefited

from various promotions such as
‘tesa kimilionea’ and ‘upige mwingi’
which saw customers winning motor

vehicles and home appliances
amang other things.
« Generally  positive  government

relations, supported for example by:

i. Collaboration with Government
to support disbursement of
beneficiary funds for government
projects.

i. Continuous engagement with the

regulator and proactively
supporting the implementation
of TIPS through  multiple
integrations.

Trade-offs: Maintaining quality relationships across all stakeholders may require trade-offs in certain relationships
as we balance competing stakeholders’ interests. For example, investing in biometric-based SIM Card registration
devices required significant short- and medium-term financial capital inputs, but enables us to meet regulatory
requirements, maintain customers, and generate positive returns over the longer-term.

11
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13. HOW THE COMPANY SUSTAIN VALUE

(CONTINUED)

Network and IT infrastructure: Manufactured capital

Critical inputs (2024)

ICompany activities to sustain value

Outcome (2024)

e TZS 6,543 million investment
(Down 44%)

* Investing
Software.

in IT  Security

Sustaining Network and IT leadership
through the following streams:

Adaptability - Investment is done for
increasing distribution by deploying
more AMB’s (Airtel Money Branches)
and Company scalable IT
infrastructure allows organizations to
adapt quickly to changing business
requirements. It ensures that the
technology can be dynamic to the
organization's needs, market
dynamics and new opportunities.

e Security and compliance - the
Company secured Net-IT
infrastructure  to  ensure fraud
management systems should work
diligently. '

Customer Experience through Digital
Transformation : The Company Net-IT
infrastructure enables the Company to
undergo digital transformation,
enhancing the  overall  customer
experience through online platforms, e-
commerce, and personalized services
through reliable communication
Channels  that support effective
communication with customers through
various channels, such as websites,
mobile apps, and social media.

Positive results in most areas:

« Positive results in most areas

o TZS 6,543 million Capital
Expenditure (CAPEX)
investment to address network
and IT plans

« 402 new AMB's (Airtel Money
Branches) deployed total count
increased to 4,525.

. Improvement in NPS (National
Payment System).

» Decrease in the CMS from
21.1% to 19%.

investment.

Trade-offs: Building and maintaining infrastructure requires significant financial capital, and appropriate levels
of human and intellectual capital, as well as certain natural capital inputs and outcomes. An extensive network
is a key basis for bridging the digital divide and sharing the substantial social benefits of digital connectivity. As
a purpose-led organization Company have committed to reducing the environmental impacts associated with
network infrastructure and services. An important trade-off is balancing the customer and regulatory calls to
reduce prices and enhance quality, with the need to generate the financial capital needed for network

12
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14. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT (CSR)

Airtel Money is committed to its stakeholders to conduct its business responsibly creating sustainability and
positive impact. It forms an integral part of the country’s cultural and financial fabric and invests in a range of
social projects in the sectors like education, health, environment.

As per CSR policy, the Company does not make any political donations.
Company CSR program for the year;
Education — (Vocational Education Training- Expansion through Digital Technology)

Airtel FURSA-VSOMO — — In 2016, 2015 and 2014 Vocational Education and Training Authority (VETA) managed
only to accommodate 41% of 11,857 applications, 31% of 13,932 applications and 18% of 17,072 applications,
respectively. This is due to the limitation of vocational training facilities to accommodate the needs.

Airtel partnered with Tanzania Vocational Education and Training Authority (VETA) to increase access to vocational
learning in the country. By using mobile phones to access vocational content through Airtel data and pay
subsidized fee via Airtel Money, Airtel and VETA provide affordable and quick alternative education reaching the
youth in every corner of the country and equipping them with skills to self-employ or enter the workforce. VSOMO
is an acronym for VETA SOMQ which stands for new developed mobile application used to provide vocational
training through smart phones.

Since its launch in June 2016, the App has received over 59,757 downloads,

1. Over 27,687 registered
2. Over 4,100 students have been certified by VETA through Vsomo.
2. The Vsomo App operates in both Swabhili and English

Students pay subsidized fees through Airtel Money of about TZS 120,000 to enroll to the short courses. The actual
VETA fee is TZS 450,000 for short courses.

Education — (Enterprise Development)

In helping the unemployed youth in the country access and acquire skills in the digital environment /help to unlock
their potential for future entrepreneurship and employment, Airtel launched Airtel Fursa program.

Airtel drive ‘Airtel Fursa Lab: Through Airtel FURSA project Airtel has partnered with Dar Technohama Business
Incubator (DTBI) to set up a technology incubator at Kijitonyama Primary school. This is ongoing project which
aims at enabling young entrepreneurs to have better cognitive capacity through coding and the development of
digital solutions in the community.

As of today, the lab has conducted training to people including students in primary and secondary schools,
teachers, and entrepreneurs to uplift their business.

The total number of beneficiaries (Pupil/Students, Entrepreneurs, Marginalized people, and Youth from the
community) impacted with digital skills through Fursa Lab are as follows.

Male 2,880
Female 2,452

Total 5,332

Beneficiaries pay TZS 120,000 through Airtel to enroll instead of approx. not less than TZS 200,000 for similar
courses.

Following is basic of what Airtel Fursa lab offered.
a. Computer Basics in Business Skills and Digital records keeping.
b. Scratch programming and Robotics.

c. Graphics design and web developing & ICT development skills.
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AIRTEL MONEY TANZANIA LIMITED

REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

15.

16.

17.

DIVIDENDS

The Company intends to pay as much of its after-tax profit as will be available after retaining such sums and repaying
such borrowings owing to third parties as shall be necessary to meet the requirements reflected in the budget and
business plan, considering monies required for investment opportunities. There is no fixed date on which entitlement
to dividends arise and the date of payment will be recommended by the Board and approved by the shareholders at
the time of declaration.

The Company made a profit after tax of TZS 104,995 million for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: TZS 81,858.9
million). During the year the Directors declared an interim dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 December
2024 of TZS 72,080 million. The Directors propose the payment of a final dividend of TZS 37,000 million in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2024, resulting in total dividend for the year ended 31 December 2024 amounting to
TZS 109,080 million (2023: TZS 73,700 million).

The Board will recommend a final dividend, in relation to the financial year ended 31 December 2024, for approval
by the shareholders at the annual general meeting.

SOLVENCY AND LIQUIDITY

The Board considers the Company to be solvent, within the meaning described by the Companies Act, No 12 of
2002 of Tanzania. The Company had net current assets of TZS 26,474 million as at 31 December 2024 (2023: net
current liabilities of TZS 17,618 million). The Company has assessed its liquidity position and is confident that
sufficient funds will be available and accessible to meet all obligations as they fall due.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND SHAREHOLDING

The Company’s issued share capital is held in the percentages outlined below:

2024 : 2023

No. of % of % of

Name of share holder shares shareholding No. of shares shareholding

Airtel Mobile Commerce Tanzania B.V. 254,490 50.9 254,490 50.9
Government of Tanzania through Treasury

Registrar 244,510 48.9 244,510 48.9

Airtel Tanzania PLC 1,000 0.2 1,000 0.2

500,000 100 500,000 100

Airtel Money shareholding structure comprised of 500,000 authorized shares of TZS 1,000 each.
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AIRTEL MONEY TANZANIA LIMITED

REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

18.

18.

20.

21.

22,

23.

24,

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND COMMITMENTS

The Company invested TZS 12,002 million (2023: TZS 9,107 million) in property and equipment. This year’s
additions include TZS 6,544 million on capital expenditure.

Further information on the Company’s property and equipment is presented in Note 13 to the financial
statements.

Information about the Company’s commitments is presented in Note 21 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS PLANS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

The Company aspire to grow business over the medium term by executing purpose-led model, by providing
access to mobile money services, as well as offering customer centric solutions that will make relevant to
customers and society. The Company will invest in distribution network and supporting infrastructures to
support growth ambitions and leverage segmented multi-products approach. Execute strategy and remain
committed to engaging with the regulators and government on all relevant matters relating to business and
the environment. The Company believe that financial inclusion can drive positive societal change and support
growth ambitions. With focus on customer proposition, the Company will continue to expand reach and
deliver the best experience. Mindful of the weaker global macro-outlook, the Company will also focus on cost
control to deliver strong profitability and generate value for shareholders, as target the following over the
medium term:

»  Continuously grow customer market share each quarter.
+  Double digit revenue growth from core services and continue to innovate additional financial services.
+  Deepen and strengthen distribution to improve access to products, services, and support.

These medium-term targets assume a stable currency, regulatory and macroeconomic environment. These
targets are on average, over the next three years, excluding spectrum purchases, exceptional items, and any
merger and acquisition activity.

BORROWINGS

The Company did not have any borrowings as at 31 December 2024 (2023: None).

POLITICAL AND CHARITABLE DONATIONS
The Company did not make any political donations during the year (2023: None).
PARENT AND ULTIMATE PARENT

Airtel Money Tanzania Limited is part of the Bharti Airtel Group of Companies. The Company’s direct
shareholders are Airtel Mobile Commerce Tanzania B.V,, Treasury Registrar Government of Tanzania and Airtel
Tanzania PLC. Airtel Tanzania PLC incorporated and domiciled in Tanzania. Airtel Mobile Commerce Tanzania
B.V. incorporated and domiciled in the Netherlands. Ultimate controlling entity effectively from November 3,
2017 is Bharti Enterprises (Holding) Private Limited. It is held by private trusts of Bharti family, with Mr. Sunil
Mittal’s family trust effectively controlling the Company. The step-up parent company that produces
consolidated financial statements for public use within the Group is Bharti Airtel Limited, a company
incorporated and domiciled in India.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions with related parties were conducted in the normal course of business. Details of transactions
and balances with related parties are included in Note 14 to the financial statements.

COUNTRY OF INCORPORATION

The Company is incorporated and domiciled in the United Republic of Tanzania.

15



AIRTEL MONEY TANZANIA LIMITED

REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
25. GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) consists of one Executive Director and five Non-Executive directors. The
Board takes overall responsibility for the Company, including responsibility for identifying key risk areas,
considering and monitoring investment decisions, considering significant financial matters, and reviewing the
performance of management business plans and budgets.

The Board is also responsible for ensuring that a comprehensive system of internal control policies and
procedures is operative, and for compliance with sound corporate governance principles.

The Board is required to meet at least four times a year (once every quarter). The Board delegates day to day
management of the business to the Managing Director assisted by the Senior Management. Senior
Management is invited to attend board meetings and  facilitates the effective control of all the Company's
operational activities, acting as a medium of communication and coordination between all the various
business units. The Board met four times during the year Major issues discussed during the meetings are:

. Performance review;

. Approval of annual plans;

. Business challenges; and

. Declaration of interim and final dividends to shareholders.

The directors of the Company who served during the year and to the date of this report are:

Name Qualifications Age Nationality Appointment Resignation
‘ Masters in  business - ' 01 November
; o )
Dinesh Balsingh ahnidisstisn 51 Indian 04 February 2022 5024
. M "

lan Basil Ferrao®® B¢ anagement 45 British 07 October 2022 N/A
Science

Adolf Timoth Certified Public )

e Aceountant (GPA) 52  Tanzanian 03 November 2022 N/A

Citah  Amdnpihe Master’s in international

Suleman - 42  French 27 September 2023 N/A

"y and European Law
Morgan
Heri Nderingo™* Masters in E-Commerce. 48  Tanzanian 27 September 2023 N/A
! Chartered Accountant 30 November
Muk i i 2
ukesh Singla (India) 52  Indian 7 September 2023 5024

Bachelors in social work

Andrew Rugamba* and social 47 Ugandan 01 November 2024  N/A
administration

Alok Bafna ** ﬁ:gg‘;d AeeOUNENt oy ngian 30 November 2024 N/A

* Executive
** Non-executive

The Company Secretary as at 31 December 2024 was David Marco Lema.
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AIRTEL MONEY TANZANIA LIMITED

REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

25. GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
Board Audit and Risk Committee (ARC)

The board ARC is responsible for:

Reviewing the financial statements of the company, and any formal announcements relating to the
Company’s performance including interim, preliminary, and annual reports, before Board approval.
Monitoring compliance with established policies, plans, instructions, and procedures with reference to
the statement of delegated authorities approved by the Board.

Ensuring there is due process for the identification and management of key business risks having regard
to any significant failings or weaknesses in internal control.

Monitoring compliance with the Company’s Standards of Business Conduct.

Monitoring and ensuring there are due processes for compliance with relevant national laws and
regulations.

Monitoring the risk management function and processes and assessing the company’s significant risks
Ensuring that there is due process for monitoring the efficiency and effectiveness of operational controls.
Monitering of canflict-of-interest disclosure for Directors and senior managers.

Reviewing the adequacy of the internal audit function including the structure, staffing and the
deployment of resources to complete their responsibilities.

Approving the Internal and external audit plan.

Reviewing the internal audit reports relating to the internal control weaknesses.

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigation by the internal auditors into matters where there is
suspected fraud or irregularity of a failure of internal control systems and reporting the matter to the
Board.

Reviewing the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism and the nature of the complaints received
by the Ombudsperson when the same is implemented by the company. '
Considering the appointment and/or termination of the external auditors, including their audit fees,
independence and objectivity and determining the nature and extent of any non-audit services.

Review the external auditors’ management letter and any major recommendations of the external
auditors and consider Management’s response.

Review the actions taken by Management on actionable issues arising out of previous Management
reports and observation from internal audits.

Reviewing and monitoring the management and reporting of tax-related matters.

17



AIRTEL MONEY TANZANIA LIMITED

REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
25. GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

The Board Audit and Risk Committee reports directly to the Board and it comprises of the below;

Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee

Name

Nationality

Qualification and Experience

Mr. Heri Nderingo

Tanzanian

Master of Science E- Commerce from Coventry University, UK
(2007)

Advanced Diploma in Information Technology, The Institute of
Finance Management, Tanzania

Diploma in Education, Mororgoro Teachers Collage, Tanzania
(2000)

Over 19 vears as Lecturer at Institute of Finance Management
(IFM), Tanzania, under Faculty of Computing Information System
and Mathematic.

Mr. Alok Bafna

Indian

A highly experienced and qualified chartered accountant from
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Over 25 years qualification experience, He has waorked at various
locations globally, in both large service and manufacturing
industries

Group Chief Financial Officer, Mobile Money for Airtel Africa PLC
Dubai from Nov 2024. Before a CFO Mobile Services, Airtel Africa
PLC, Nairobi & Dubai, Controller Market Operation, Bharti Limited,
Gurgaon and other Leadership roles. '

Ms.Cihan Seuleiman
Morgan

French

Master Degree in International & European Law, Paris XI University
(2007)

Master Degree in Project Management specialized in African
Countries, Paris X University (2006)

Bachelor in International and European Law, La Complutense
University, Madrid,(2005)

Lawyer (Spain & France), Certified Privacy Professional (GDPR)
Qualified as a Civil Lawyer with the extensive work experience in
both common and civil laws jurisdictions for over 15 years

Chief Legal & Compliance Officer for Airtel Money Commerce BV
from 2021, before she was VP Group Legal- Airtel Africa PLC,
General Manager Bharti Airtel International (Netherlands) BV
(Kenya) — Airtel Africa PLC, Regional Counsel Africa Aecom Africa
(South Africa), Group Legal Advisor (Africa) — Ingerop
International Consultants (South Africa) and others

She is Board Member on Airtel Mobile financial services legal
entities across operating and holding entities

Former Member of the ethics and compliance Middle East and
Africa Committee for a 500 fortune company

26. DIRECTOR’S INTEREST IN THE SHARES OF THE COMPANY
None of the Directors have any interest in the Company’s sharehalding.

27. DIRECTOR’S EMOULMENTS

The Directors of the Company were paid fees and emoluments amounting to TZS 42 million during the year

(2023 45.7 million)
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AIRTEL MONEY TANZANIA LIMITED

REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
28. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Board is not aware of any other matter or circumstance arising since the end of the reporting period, not
otherwise dealt with herein, which requires adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements.

29. AUDITORS

The auditors, Deloitte & Touche, having expressed their willingness, continue in office in accordance with
section 170 (2) of the Companies Act, 2002.

Deloitte & Touche with PF No 025 and Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN) 100-148-692 is an audit firm
registered with the National Board of Accountants and Auditors of Tanzania (NBAA).

Authorisation and approval or financial statements

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 were approved and authorized for issue by the
Boardon .. l..Marta.... 2025.

Pt ol Warse gemets —

Name of Director Signature'

Anvvren  Rusamsh-

"Name of Director Signatu‘r’e = “ ¥
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AIRTEL MONEY TANZANIA LIMITED
STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Companies Act, 2002 requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year that give a
true and fair view of the Campany’s state of affairs and its operating results for that year. The Companies Act, 2002
also requires the Directors to ensure that the Company keeps proper accounting records which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Company. They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Company.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by International Accounting Standards Board and the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2002, and for such internal controls as Directors determine are necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

The Directors accept responsibility for the financial statements, which have been prepared using appropriate
accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, in conformity with [FRS
Accounting Standards as issued by International Accounting Standards Board and in the manner required by the
Companies Act, 2002. The Directors are of the opinion that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of the financial affairs of the Company and of its operating results. The Directors further accept responsibility
for the maintenance of accounting records, which may be relied upon in the preparation of financial statements, as
well as adequate systems of internal financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of Directors to indicate that the Company will not remain a going concern for at least
the next twelve months from the date of this statement.

Approved by the Board of Directors on ” MD‘-V(JA 2025 and signed on behalf by:

\Casa%qw& 'EFKX% b

Name of Directo Signature

Anvrewy  Rugnamrh -

Name of Director Signature
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AIRTEL MONEY TANZANIA LIMITED

DECLARATION BY THE HEAD OF FINANCE

The National Board of Accountants and Auditors (NBAA) according to the power conferred under the Auditors
and Accountants (Registration) Act. No. 33 of 1972, as amended by Act No. 2 of 1995, requires financial
statements to be accompanied with a declaration issued by the head of finance responsible for the preparation
of financial statements of the entity concerned.

It is the duty of a professional accountant to assist the Board of Directors to discharge the responsibility of
preparing financial statements of the Company showing true and fair view of the Company position and
performance in accordance with applicable accounting standards and statutory requirements. Full legal
responsibility for the preparation of financial statements rests with the Board of Directors as set out in the
statement of Directors’ responsibilities on page 5.

|, Rajesh Chawla, being the Financial Controller of Airtel Money Tanzania Limited hereby acknowledge my
responsibility of ensuring that financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 have been prepared in
compliance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by International Accounting Standards Board and statutory
requirements.

| thus confirm that the financial statements comply with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by International
Accounting Standards Board and statutory requirements as on that date and that they have been prepared based
on properly maintained financial records.

@apnA_—

Rajesh Chawla
Financial Controller
NBAA Registration No.: TACPA 3974
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF AIRTEL MONEY TANZANIA LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompany financial statements of Airtel Money Tanzania Limited (“the Company”), set out on pages 24 to
48, which comprise the statements of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and the statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31
December 2024 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting
Standards as issued by International Accounting Standards Board and the requirements of Companies Act, 2002.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those

standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the National Board of Accounts and Auditors (NBAA) Code of Ethics
which is consistent with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Internaticnal Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code), togethér with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Tanzania and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the IESBA Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information
The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the

Company information, the Report by Those Charged with Governance, Statement of Directors Respansibilities and the Declaration
of the Head of Finance but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that
we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The Directars are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRS
Accounting Standards as issued by International Accounting Standards Board and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2002;
and for such internal controls as Directors determine are necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. Those
charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

e
MAKING AN
IMPACT THAT
MATTERS , , i

L~

Partners: F.J. Kibiki Y.F Kasenge M.R Richard
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Company financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by the Companies Act, 2002 we report to you, based on our audit, that:

(i)  we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary
for the purposes of our audit;

(i) inour opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company, so far as appears from our examination of
those books of account; and

(i) the statements of financial position (balance sheet) and the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income (profit and loss account) are in agreement with the books of account.

The engagement partner responsible for the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is F.J. Kibiki.

Deloitte & Touche
Certified Public Accountants (Tanzania)

W/Q\ﬁ—/ 34M" ....... 2025

Signed by: F.J. Kibiki
NBAA Registration No. ACPA - PP 3214
Dar es Salaam
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AIRTEL MONEY TANZANIA LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Income
Service revenue
Other income

Expenses

Commission sales and marketing expenses
Other expenses

Licence fees and spectrum charges
Employee benefit expenses

Depreciation and amortization

Operating profit

Finance cost
Finance income

Profit before tax

Income tax expense

Profit after tax

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

24

Notes

8(a)

8(b)

10
11

12(a)

2024 2023
TZS'000 TZS'000
330,700,188 272,507,545
52,415 120,923
330,752,603 272,628,468
(140,524,925) (125,546,038)
(24,320,764) (17,782,170)
(7,731,303) (5,286,067)
(4,488,241) (3,092,353)
(3,649,088) (3,467,663)
150,038,282 117,454,177
(221,192) (546,456)
513,743 45,177
150,330,833 116,952,898
(45,335,372) (35,093,907)
104,995,461 81,858,991
104,995,461 81,858,991




AIRTEL MONEY TANZANIA LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AT 31 DECEMBER 2024

2024 2023
ASSETS Notes TZ5'000 TZ5'000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 13 7,984,013 7,298,798
Capital Work-in-progress 13 4,018,551 1,808,951
Deferred tax asset 12(d) 3,130,447 2,665,811
15,133,011 11,773,560
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 15 45,251,690 29,916,363
Cash and cash equivalents 16 41,064,262 39,274,570
86,315,952 69,190,933
Total assets 101,448,963 80,964,493
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 17 500,000 500,000
Retained earnings 41,107,509 28,892,048
Total equity 41,607,509 29,392,048
Current liabilities
Income tax payable 12(c) 6,516,750 6,476,020
Trade and other payables 18 53,324,704 45,096,425
Total current liabilities 59,841,454 51,572,445
Total equity and liabilities 101,448,963 80,964,453

The financial statements on page 24 to 48 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
L Mavth 2025 and signed on its behalf by:

__—k}q - TWE
Name ‘w (\.. \@aLS.Q%Q Name AADREW Ruc#Ameri
Title ‘D{VQ_Q/&'W va/\ Tile DIpEC 7O0F—
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AIRTEL MONEY TANZANIA LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Notes

At 1 January 2024
Dividend declared - 2023 final 19

- 2024 interim 19
Total comprehensive income for the year
At 31 December 2024
At 1 January 2023
Issue of shares
Dividend declared - 2022 final 19

- 2023 interim 19

Total comprehensive income for the year

At 31 December 2023

Retained

Share capital earnings Total

TZ5'000 TZ5'000 TZ5'000

500,000 28,892,048 29,392,048

- (20,700,000) (20,700,000)

(72,080,000) (72,080,000)

104,995,461 104,995,461

500,000 41,107,509 41,607,509

1,000 13,183,057 13,184,057

499,000 - 499,000

= (13,150,000) (13,150,000}

= (53,000,000) (53,000,000}

= 81,858,991 81,858,991
500,000 28,892,048 25,392,048

26



AIRTEL MONEY TANZANIA LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

2024 2023
Notes TZ5'000 TZ5'000
Operating activities
Profit before tax 150,330,833 116,952,898
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 9 3,645,088 3,467,663
Bad debts (charge)/recovery 8(a) 739,441 (1,203,318)
154,719,362 119,217,243
Movement in working capital:
Increase in trade and other receivables (20,301,524) (11,317,735)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables (216,072) 6,578,453
134,201,766 114,477,961
Income tax paid 12 (c) (43,045,708) (30,008,457)
Withholding tax paid 12 (c) (2,713,570) (2,246,745)
Net cash flow generated from operating activities 88,442,488 82,222,759
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (6,241,010) (1,841,824)
Net cash used in investing activities (6,241,010) (1,841,824)
Financing activities
Dividend paid 19 (80,411,786) (66,150,000)
Proceeds from issue of share capital - 499,000
Net cash used in financing activities (80,411,786) (65,651,000)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,789,692 14,729,934
Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of the year 39,274,570 24,544,636
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 16 41,064,262 39,274,570
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AIRTEL MONEY TANZANIA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Airtel Money Tanzania Limited (“the Company”) is incorporated in Tanzania under the Companies Act, 2002 as
a limited liability company, and is domiciled in Tanzania.

The Company was incorporated on 10 June 2016 and was granted electronic money issuer license by the Bank
of Tanzania on 18 September 2018 and started operation from 1 September 2018.

The principal activities of the Company are disclosed in the Report of the Directors on page 2.
2. STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS AFFECTING THE REPORTED RESULTS OR FINANCIAL POSITION
a) Adoption of new and revised IFRS Accounting Standards and interpretations

None of the new and revised standards and interpretations, which became effective during the current year,
have resulted in a change in the Company’s accounting policies or in presentation. Neither have they had an
effect on the reported results for the year.

b) Relevant new and amended standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective in the year ended 31
December 2024

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, several new and revised standards and

interpretations were in issue but not yet effective. The Directors are in the process of evaluating the potential
effect of these standards and interpretation on the financial statements of the Company when effective.

c) Early adoption of standards

The Company did not early adopt any new or amended standards for the year ended 31 December 2024.
3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with and comply with IFRS Accounting Standards
as issued by International Accounting Standards Board and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2002.

For the Companies Act, 2002 reporting purposes, in these financial statements, the statement of financial
position represents the balance sheet and the profit and loss account is equivalent to the statement profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

b) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except where stated otherwise. The
financial statements are presented in Tanzanian Shillings (TZS) and all balances are rounded to the nearest
thousand (‘000’), except when otherwise indicated.

c) Functional and presentation currency

Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are converted into Tanzanian Shillings at the exchange rate
ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the
reporting date are translated into Tanzanian shillings at the exchange rate ruling at that date. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are translated to
Tanzanian Shillings at the date when the fair value was determined. Foreign currency gains and losses arising
from translation are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.
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AIRTEL MONEY TANZANIA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
d) Financial instruments
i) Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, fair value through other
comprehensive income and amortised cost. The Company determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition

All financial instruments are initially measured at fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial
liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs.

The Company’s financial assets include cash equivalents and trade and other receivables.

Subsequent measurement

Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised entirely in profit or loss (fair
value through profit or loss, FVTPL), or recognized in other comprehensive income (fair value through other
comprehensive income, FVTOCI).

For debt instruments the FVTOCI classification is mandatory for certain assets unless the fair value option is
elected. A debt instrument that meets the following two conditions (business model test and cash flow

characteristics test) must be measured at amortised cost (net of any write down for impairment) unless the

asset is designated at FVTPL under the fair value option. Whilst for equity investments, the FVTOCI classification
is an election.

All equity investments are to be measured at fair value in the statement of financial position, with value changes
recognised in profit or loss, except for those equity investments for which the Company has elected to present
value changes in 'other comprehensive income'. There is no 'cost exception' for unquoted equities. If an equity
investment is not held for trading, a Company can make an irrevocable election at initial recognition to measure
it at FVTOCI with only dividend income recognized in profit or loss

The classification of a financial asset is made at the time it is initially recognised, namely when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. If certain conditions are met, the classification
of an asset may subsequently need to be reclassified.

De-recognition

A financial asset, or where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets is
derecognized when:

« The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipient unless it collects equivalent amounts
on the original asset

o The Company is prohibited from selling or pledging the original asset (other than as security to the eventual
recipient), the entity has an obligation to remit those cash flows without material delay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and
only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment
may include indications that the debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
d) Financial instruments (continued)

i) Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The expected credit loss (ECL) is mainly based on the ageing of the receivable balances and historical experience.
Trade receivables are assessed on an individual basis or grouped into homogeneous groups and assessed for
impairment collectively, depending on their significance. Moreover, trade receivables are written off on a case to-
case basis if deemed not to be collectible on the assessment of the underlying facts and circumstances in note 15.

The Company performs on-going credit evaluations of its customers’ financial condition and monitors the credit-
worthiness of its customers to which it grants credit in its ordinary course of business. The gross carrying amount of
a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amount due. Where the financial asset has been written-off,
the Company continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where
recoveries are made, these are recognized in profit and loss.

The Company uses a provision matrix to measure the expected credit loss of trade receivables. Refer note 15 for
details on the impairment of trade receivables. Based on the industry practices and the business environment in
which the entity operates, management considers that the trade receivables are credit impaired if the payments are

more than 90 days past due.
i) Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings
measured at amortized cost, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and in the case of loans and borrowings measured at
amortized cost, plus directly attributable transaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other

payables and interest bearing borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, trade and other payables and interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amaortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Fair Value Option

IFRS 9 contains an option to designate a financial liability as measured at FVTPLIf:

o doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred
to as an 'accounting mismatch') that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognizing
the gains and losses on them on different bases, or

e the liability is part or a group of financial liabilities or financial assets and financial liabilities that is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the group is provided internally on that basis to the entity's
key management personnel.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
ii) Financial liabilities (continued)
Fair Value Option (continued)

A financial liability which does not meet any of these criteria may still be designated as measured at FVTPL when it
contains one or more embedded derivatives that sufficiently modify the cash flows of the liability and are not clearly
closely related.

IFRS 9 requires gains and losses on financial liabilities designated as at FVTPL to be split into the amount of change in
fair value attributable to changes in credit risk of the liability, presented in other comprehensive income, and the
remaining amount presented in profit or loss. This guidance allows the recognition of the full amount of change in the
fair value in profit or loss only if the presentation of changes in the liability's credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. That determination is made at initial recognition and
is not reassessed.

Amounts presented in other comprehensive income shall not be subsequently transferred to profit or loss, the entity
may only transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

De-recognition

A financial liability should be removed from the balance sheet when, and only when, it is extinguished, that is, when the
obligation specified in the contract is either discharged or cancelled or expires. Where there has been an exchange
between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms, or there has been a
substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability, this transaction is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. A gain or loss from
extinguishment of the original financial liability is recognized in profit or loss.

iii) Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statements of financial position

if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle ona
net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

e) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and Equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any. Such cost includes borrowing costs for long term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When
significant parts of property, plant and Equipment are required to be replaced in intervals, the Company recognises such
parts as separate component of assets with specific useful lives and provides depreciation over their useful life.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Where assets are installed on the premises of customers (commonly called Customer Premise equipment -"CPE;"), such
assets continue to be treated as property, plant and equipment as the associated risks and rewards remain with the
Company and the management is confident of exercising control over them.

The Company also enters into multiple element contracts whereby the vendor supplies plant and equipment and IT
related services. These are recorded on the basis of relative fair value.

Gains and losses arising from retirement or disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss on the date

of retirement and disposal.
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3

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
e) Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Assets are depreciated to the residual values on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives. The assets' residual
values and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year end or whenever there are indicators for review, and adjusted
prospectively. Land is not depreciated.

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Asset classification Useful Life Depreciation rate

Network equipment 3-25years 4% - 33.3%

Computer equipment 3 years 33.3%

Office furniture and equipment 1-5years 20% - 100%

Leasehold improvements Over the period of the lease Over the period of the lease
f) Taxation

Income tax

Income tax expense is the aggregate of the charge to profit or loss in respect of current income tax and deferred income
tax. Current income tax is the amount of income tax payable on the taxable profit for the year determined in accordance
with the Income Tax Act, 2004. : ‘ ’

Deferred income tax is provided in full using the liability method on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying values for financial reporting purposes. However, if the deferred income tax
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit nor loss, it is not accounted for. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same tax authority.

Excise duty

Excise duty is defined in accordance with Section 124 of the Excise (Management and Tariff) Act 2004. Itis at 17% on all
electronic communication services with the exception of inbound roaming and a few other items. It is included in the
face value of the voucher & electronic recharges on sale.

Excise duty is charged at 10% on mobile money transfer charges during the year. Excise Duty is accounted for as payable

amount in the balance sheet in the month of a liability where as it is paid before the end of the subsequent month of
liability to the Tanzania Revenue Authority. Unlike VAT, Excise duty is not recoverable on purchases.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

f)  Taxation (continued)
Value added tax
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of value added tax, except:

I When the value added tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the tax authority,
in which case, the value added tax is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the

expense item, as applicable.
i Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of value added tax included.

The net amount of value added tax recoverable from, or payable to the tax authority is included as part of receivables
or payables in the statement of financial position.

Levy
Revenues, are recognized net of the amount of levy.

The amount of levy recovered from customers, and payable to the tax authority is included as part of trade and other
payables in the statement of financial position

g) Revenue recognition

Revenue arises from billing customers for P2P (person to person on-net and off-net) transactions; cash out (withdrawal)
transactions, Airtel Maney to bank transactions, collections of funds for customers purchasing goods and services using
Airtel Money and commissions on sale of airtime and business revenue arising from bulk payment transactions.

Revenue is recognised in line with IFRS 15 5-Step Model.

The five steps in the Model are as follows:

o lIdentify the contract with the customer

Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Determine the transaction price

Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contracts
Recognise revenue when {or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

O O O O

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payments and
excluding taxes or duty (Value Added Tax, excise duty and levies). The amount of revenue is not considered to be reliably
measurable until all contingencies relating to the transactions have been resolved.

h) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand, Airtel Money electronic money, demand and time deposits with banks whose original maturities do not
exceed three months are classified as cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows. Bank overdrafts are
deducted from these balances to arrive at cash and cash equivalents.

i) Dividends

Dividends on ordinary shares are charged to equity in the year in which they are declared. Proposed dividends are shown
as a separate component of equity until declared. Details of dividend are set out in note 19.
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3

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

j)  Employment benefits

Retirement benefit obligations

All Company employees are members of PSSSF Pension Fund ("PSSSF"), which are defined contribution plans. A defined
contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions. The Company has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. The Company and employees both contribute
10% of the employees' basic salaries to the PSSSF respectively. The contributions are recognized as employee benefit

expense when they are due.

Other entitlements. The estimated monetary liability for employees' accrued annual leave entitlement at the reporting
date is recognized as an expense accrual.

k) Fair value measurement

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of

unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within

the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

e Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market
prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

o Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

I) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the statements of financial position based on current/non-current

classification.

An asset is current when it is either:

e Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;

s Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

e Expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting period;

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when either:

e [tis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

e |tis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

e Itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period;

e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting

period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current
assets and liabilities
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3:

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are as follows:

a) Goingconcern

The Company’s Directors have made an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and are
satisfied that the Company has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, the
Directors are not aware of any other material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the financial statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

b) Taxation

The Company is subjected to a number of taxes and levies by various Government and guasi-government
regulations bodies. As a rule of thumb, the Company recognizes liabilities for the anticipated tax/levies payable with
at most care and diligence. However, significant judgment is usually required in the interpretation and applicability
of those taxes/levies. Should it come to the attention of managements in one way or other, that the initially
recorded liability was erroneous; such differences will affect the income and liabilities in the period in which such
differences are determined. ’ ’ ’

c) Fairvalues on financial instruments

Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded on the statement of financial position cannot
be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of
mathematical models. The inputs to these models are derived from observable market data where possible, but where
observable market data are not available, judgment is required to establish fair values. The judgments include
considerations of liquidity and model inputs such as volatility for longer dated derivatives and discount rates,
prepayment rates and default rate assumptions for asset backed securities.

d) Property, Plant and Equipment

Critical estimates are made by the Directors in determining depreciation rates for property, plant and equipment and
their residual values. The rates used are set out in Note 3 (e).

e) Impairment of financial assets

The expected credit loss (ECL) is mainly based on the ageing of the receivable balances and historical experience. The
receivables are assessed on an individual basis or grouped into homogeneous groups and assessed for impairment
collectively, depending on their significance. Moreover, trade receivables are written off on a case to-case basis if
deemed not to be collectible on the assessment of the underlying facts and circumstances in note 15.

The Company performs on-going credit evaluations of its customers’ financial condition and monitors the credit-
worthiness of its customers to which it grants credit in its ordinary course of business. The gross carrying amount of a
financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amount due. Where the financial asset has been written-off, the Company
continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made,
these are recognised in profit and loss.

The Company uses a provision matrix to measure the expected credit loss of trade receivables. Refer to note 15 for
details on the impairment of trade receivables. Based on the industry practices and the business envirenment in which
the entity operates, management considers that the trade receivables are credit impaired if the payments are more
than 90 days past due.

Where any impairment is established, the Company records it in the profit or loss the extent that is not expected to be
recovered.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED)

f) Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying amount of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is
based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of the cash flow.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on its financial performance, but the Company does not hedge any risks.

Risk management is carried out by management under policies approved by the Board of Directors.

Market risk

i) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises from financial instruments held in foreign currencies. The Company’s exposure to foreign
exchange risk arises from settlement of International Money transfers, which are settled in foreign currencies, primarily
the US dollar.

The following table demonstrate the sensitivity to possible changes in the exchange rate between the Tanzanian shilling

and foreign currencies (Mainly US dollar, other currencies are considered to be immaterial), with all other va riables held
constant, of the Company’s profit before tax (due to changes in carrying amount of monetary assets and liabilities).

Effecton

profit/loss after tax

TZS ‘000

Net effect based on the year end as at 10% 1,041,368
31 December 2024 -10% (1,041,368)
Net effect based on the year end as at 10% (27,887)
31 December 2023 -10% 27,887

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on net exposure at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023. The
change of 10% is what is used when determining the foreign currency transaction risk reported internally to key
management personnel to assess reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rates.

The table below summarizes the Company’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at 31 December 2024 and

2023. Included in the table are the Company’s financial instruments, categorized by currency (all amounts expressed in
thousands of Tanzanian Shillings):
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2024 —in TZS “000 usD Euro Others

Financial assets

Trade and other receivables 4,067,715 - -
Cash at bank 11,415,753 - -
Total Financial Asset 15,483,467 - -

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables (5,069,791) - -
Net currency exposure 10,413,676 - -
At 31 December 2023 — In TZS “000 usD Euro Others

Financial assets .
Trade and other receivables 4,649,547 - -

Cash at bank 1,224,389 - -
Total Financial Asset 5,873,936 - -

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables (6,152,805) - -
Net currency exposure (278,869) - -
i) Price risk

The Company does not hold any financial instruments subject to price risk.

iii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate exposure arises from interest rate movements. The Company have fixed interest deposits with banks.

iv) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counter party to a financial instrument fails to
meets its contractual obligations, and arises principally from placements (bank balances) and balances with other

counterparties.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

iv) Credit risk (Continued)

The amount that best represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 December 2024 is made

up as follows:

Trade receivables
Due from related parties
Cash and bank balances

Fully Past due but

Total performing not impaired Impaired

TZS '000 TZS '000 TZ5'000 TZS '000
2,172,448 1,429,795 - 742,653
40,101,355 40,101,355 & -
41,064,262 41,064,262 - -
83,338,065 82,595,412 - 742,653

The amount that best represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 December 2023 is made

up as follows:

Trade receivables
Due from related parties
Cash and bank balances

v) Liquidity risk

Fully Past due but

Total performing not impaired Impaired

TZS '000 TZS '000 TZ5 '000 TZ5'000

3,459,153 3,455,941 . - 3,212

23,157,584 23,157,584 - -
39,817,007 39,817,007 -

66,433,744 66,430,532 - 3,212

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. Prudent
liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash balances to meet its liabilities when due, under both
normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s

reputation.

The table below indicates the contractual timing of cash flows arising from financial assets and liabilities as of

31 December 2024:

Financial assets

Trade receivables
Due from related parties
Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities

Trade payables

Accrued expenses

Due to employees

Due to related parties
Equipment suppliers payable
Dividend payable

Other payables

Net liquidity excess
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Carrying amount Less than 1 year
TZS '000 TZ5'000
1,429,795 1,429,795
40,101,355 40,101,355
41,064,262 41,064,262
82,595,412 82,595,412
(2,656,773) (2,656,773)
(11,405,376) (11,405,376)
(50,297) (50,297)
(17,439,005) (17,439,005)
(358,589) (358,589)
(7,543,363) (7,543,363)
(722,266) (722,266)
(40,175,669) (40,175,669)
42,419,742 42,419,742
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5

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

v) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below indicates the contractual timing of cash flows arising from financial assets and liabilities as of

31 December 2023:

Financial assets

Trade receivables

Due from related parties
Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities

Trade payables

Accrued expenses

Due to employees

Due to related parties
Equipment suppliers payable

Other payables

Net liquidity excess
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Carrying amount Less than 1 year
TZS '000 TZS '000
3,455,941 3,455,941
23,157,584 23,157,584
39,817,007 39,817,007
66,430,532 66,430,532
(9,431,756) (9,431,756)
(13,484,876) (13,484,876)
(387,873) (387,873)
(10,380,559) (10,380,559)
(55,697) (55,697)
(65,369) (65,369)
(33,806,130) (33,806,130)
32,624,402 32,624,402
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

vi) Categorization of financial instruments

Financial
Financial liabilities at Non-financial
assets at amortized assets and
As at 31 December 2024 amortised cost costs liabilities Equity Total
TZS ‘000 TZ5’000 TZ5'000 TZ5'000 TZ5'000
Non-current assets
Property plant and equipment - - 7,984,014 - 7,984,014
Capital Work-in-progress 4,018,551 4,018,551
Deferred tax asset - - 3,130,447 - 3,130,447
- < 15,133,012 - 15,133,012
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 41,531,150 - 3,720,540 - 45,251,690
Trade receivables 1,429,785 - - - 1,429,795
Prepayments - - 471,864 - 471,864
Other receivable - - 3,248,677 - 3,248,677
Due from related party 40,101,355 - - - 40,101,355
Cash and cash equivalents 41,064,262 - - - 41,064,262
82,595,412 - -3,720,540 - 86,315,952
Total assets 82,595,412 - 18,853,552 - 101,448,964
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Ordinary shares - - - 500,000 500,000
Retained earnings - - - 41,107,509 41,107,509
Total equity - - - 41,607,509 41,607,509
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables - 40,175,667 13,149,036 - 53,324,706
Trade payables - 2,656,773 - - 2,656,773
Accrued expenses - 11,405,376 - - 11,405,376
Due to related party - 17,439,005 - N 17,435,005
Dues to employees - 50,297 - - 50,297
Withholding tax payables - - 1,370,416 - 1,370,416
VAT payable - - 6,116,090 - 6,116,090
Excise duty payables - - 2,440,408 - 2,440,408
Levy - - 2,449,351 - 2,449,351
Dividend payable 7,543,363 - 7,543,363
Security deposit - - FT2I7L = 772,771
Equipment supply payable - 358,589 - - 358,589
Other payables - 722,2664 . - 722,266
Income tax payable - - 6,516,750 - 6,516,750
Total liabilities - 40,175,669 19,665,786 - 59,841,455
Total equity and liabilities - 40,175,669 19,665,786 41,607,509 101,448,964
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5

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

vi) Categorisation of financial instruments (continued)

As at 31 December 2023

Non-current assets

Property plant and equipment

Capital Work-in-progress
Deferred tax asset

Current assets

Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables
Prepayments

Other receivable

Due from related party
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity and liabilities
Equity

Ordinary shares
Retained earnings

Total equity

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Trade payables

Accrued expenses

Due to related party
Dues to employees
Withholding tax payables
VAT payable

Excise duty payables
Levy

Security deposit
Equipment supply payable
Other payables

Income tax payable

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Financial
Financial liabilities at Non-financial
assets at amortized assets and
amortised cost costs liabilities Equity Total
TZ5 000 TZS'000 TZ5°000 TZS'000 TZS'000
- - 7,298,799 - 7,298,799
1,808,951 1,808,951
- - 2,665,811 2,665,811
- - 11,773,561 - 11,773,561
26,613,526 - 3,302,837 - 29,373,925
3,455,941 - - - 3,455,941
- - 926,481 - 926,482
- - 2,376,356 - 2376355.775
23,157,584 - - - 23,157,584
39,274,570 - - - 39,274,570
65,888,096 - 3,302,837 - 69,150,932
65,888,096 - 15,076,398 - 80,564,493
= - - 500,000 500,000
- - - 28,892,048 28,892,048
- - - 29,392,048 29,392,048
- 33,806,130 11,290,285 - 45,096,425
- 9,431,756 - - 9,431,756
- 13,484,876 - - 13,484,876
- 10,380,559 - - 10,380,559
- 387,873 - - 387,873
- - 1,534,286 - 1,534,286
- - 4,525,212 - 4,525,212
- - 2,153,170 - 2,153,170
- - 2,351,641 - 2,351,641
- - 725,986 - 725,986
- 55,697 - - 55,697
- 65,369 - - 65,369
- - 6,476,020 - 6,476,020
- 33,806,130 17,766,315 - 51,572,445
= 33,806,130 17,766,315 25,269,358 80,964,493
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S. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTIUED)

vii) Capital risk management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Board of Directors reviews the capital structure on a regular basis. As part of this review, the board considers the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on the review, the Company analyses and assesses

the gearing ratio to determine the level and its optimality.

viii) Fair value

The fair value of the Company’s financial instruments reasonably approximates the carrying amounts.

2024 2023
TZS'000 TZ5'000
SERVICE REVENUE
Money transfer 230,572,699 193,166,731
Bill payments 43,867,325 34,694,335
Easy recharge commission 40,361,259 29,869,905
Other fees and charges 15,898,905 14,776,574
330,700,188 272,507,545
COMMISSION SALES AND MARKETING EXPENSES
Channel commission 111,284,021 106,128,806
Interoperability cost and others 19,377,504 12,707,537
Sales and distribution expenses 6,754,391 4,651,120
Marketing expenses 3,109,009 2,058,575
140,524,925 125,546,038
OTHER EXPENSES
a) OTHER EXPENSES
Management fees 12,701,622 8,848,620
Other operating expenses 531,696 384,511
Customer care expenses 2,458,892 2,619,603
Information technology and network costs 7,519,390 6,602,880
Legal and professional charges 369,723 529,874
Impairment reversal - trade receivables 739,441 (1,203,318)
24,320,764 17,782,170
b) EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
Wages and salaries 3,556,425 2,411,193
Social security cost — defined contribution scheme 267,432 204,605
Other employee emoluments and benefits 664,380 476,555
4,488,241 3,092,353
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9.

10.

11.

12,

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

Depreciation on owned assets

FINANCE COST

Bank charges
Derivative and foreign exchange loss
Derivative and foreign exchange (gains)

FINANCE INCOME

Interest on bank deposits

INCOME TAX

(a) Income tax expense
Current tax:
- Corporate income tax in respect of current year
- Corporate income tax in respect of prior year

Deferred tax:
- Deferred tax credit in respect of prior period
- Deferred tax credit in respect of current year

(b) Income tax reconciliation
Profit before tax

Applicable tax rate of 30%

Tax effect of
- Non-deductible expenditure
- Deferred tax credit in respect of prior period
- Corporate income tax in respect of prior year

{(c) Currentincome tax payable
At 1 January

Current tax charge (note 12(a))
Tax paid

Withholding tax recovered
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2024 2023
TZ5'000 TZ5'000
3,649,088 3,467,663
115,379 38,294
459,987 508,162
(354,174) 5
221,192 546,456
513,743 45,177
513,743 45,177
45 587 084 35,199,038
212,924 -
45,800,008 35,199,038
(464,636) (105,131)
45,335,372 35,093,907
150,330,833 116,952,898
45,099,250 35,085,869
23,158 8,038
212,924 2
45,335,372 35,093,907
6,476,020 3,532,184
45,800,008 35,199,038
(43,045,708) (30,008,457)
(2,713,570) (2,246,745)
6,516,750 6,476,020
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12.

13.

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

(d) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is calculated using the enacted income tax rate of 30% on all temporary differences using the
liability method. The Company has a net deferred income tax asset as at 31 December 2024 amounting to TZ5

3,130,447 (2023: TZS 2,665,811).

The temporary differences making up the deferred income tax are as presented below:

Accelerated capital allowances
Provision for bad debts

Bonus accrual

Provision for annual leave

QOther provisions

Unrealized foreign exchange difference

Net temporary differences

Deferred tax asset at 30%

PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Year ended 31 December 2024
Cost

At 1 January 2024

Additions

At 31 December 2024

Depreciation
At 1 January 2024
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2024

Net book value
At 31 December 2024

Year ended 31 December 2023
Cost

At 1 January 2023

Additions

Transfer in/(out)

At 31 December 2023
Depreciation

At 1 January 2023
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2023

Net book value
At 31 December 2023
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2024 2023

TZ5'000 TZ5'000

8,565,745 7,280,908

742,653 3,212

423,001 298,387

41,362 47,417

140,707 986,626

521,355 269,487

10,434,823 8,886,037

3,130,447 2,665,811

- Property :
plantand  Capital work

equipment in progress Total
TZ5'000 TZ5'000 TZ5'000
23,080,938 1,808,951 24,889,889
4,334,303 2,209,600 6,543,903
27,415,241 4,018,551 31,433,792
15,782,140 - 15,782,140
3,649,088 B 3,649,088
19,431,228 - 19,431,228
7,984,013 4,018,551 12,002,564
21,083,987 1,960,574 23,044,561
1,845,328 B 1,845,328
151,623 (151,623) -
23,080,938 1,808,951 24,889,889
12,314,477 < 12,314,477
3,467,663 - 3,467,663
15,782,140 = 15,782,140
7,298,798 1,808,951 9,107,749
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14. RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURE

Related party relationships exist between the Company, its shareholders, other companies under common ownership
and the Directors of the Company.

The following are the transactions entered between related parties:

a) Purchase of service from related parties

Name

Airtel Mobile
Commerce B.V.

Airtel Tanzania PLC
Airtel Tanzania PLC
Airtel Tanzania PLC

Airtel Tanzania PLC
Airtel Tanzania PLC

Airtel Tanzania PLC
Airtel Tanzania PLC

Airtel Tanzania PLC

Country of Nature of transaction
Incorporation

Netherlands Management fee

Tanzania Bulk SMS charges
Tanzania USSD charge
Tanzania Free minutes charges
: Common cost allocation
Tanzania i
for facility expenses
Common cost allocation
Tanzania Airtel Shop running
; expense
Tanzania Local management fees
TSR Common cost allocation
shared IT cost
Tanzania Group management fees

b) Sale of service from related parties

Name

Airtel Tanzania PLC

Airtel Tanzania PLC

Airtel Tanzania PLC

Country of Nature of transaction
Incorporation
Tanzania Commission on collection

Revenue share on churn
reduction

Commission on recharges
through AM platform

Tanzania

Tanzania
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Relationship

Intermediate
Parent
Fellow
Subsidiary
Fellow
Subsidiary
Fellow
Subsidiary
Fellow
Subsidiary

Fellow
Subsidiary

Fellow
Subsidiary
Fellow
Subsidiary
Fellow
Subsidiary

Relationship

Fellow
Subsidiary
Fellow
Subsidiary
Fellow
Subsidiary

2024 2023
TZ5'000 TZ5'000
5,147,076 6,261,725
892,923 705,164
2,878,884 2,080,675
495,313 463,582
408,759 334,965
405,288 346,163
3,187,508 1,181,615
1,739,257 1,584,148
4,367,038 1,405,280
19,522,046 14,363,321
2024 2023
TZ5'000 TZ5'000
203,429 115,483
7,584,095 9,401,396
40,361,259 29,869,905
48,148,783 39,386,784
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14. RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURE (CONTINUED)

The following are balances with related parties:

c) Balance due from related parties

e} Key management compensation

2024 2023
Name Cauniry Of. Nature of transaction  Relationship TZ5'000 TZ5'000
Incorporation
Airtel Tanzania PLC Tanzania Management services Fellow
and payment on behalf Subsidiary 36,022,704 18,508,037
Smartcash Payment Nigeria Payment on behalf Fellow
Service Bank Limited Subsidiary
(Nigeria) 2,773 -
Nxtra Data Limited India IT Services Fellow
Subsidiary 8,163 -
Airtel Mobile Commerce  Malawi Cross border money
Limited (Malawi) transfer 3,357,369 3,887,596
Airtel Mobile Commerce Rwanda Cross border money Fellow
(Rwanda) Limited transfer Subsidiary - 15,387
Airtel Mobile Commerce Zambia Cross border maney Fellow
Zambia Limited transfer Subsidiary 710,346 746,564
_ _ 40,101,355 23,157,584
d) Balance due to related parties
* 2024 2023
Name Cotintey Of. Nature of transaction  Relationship TZ5'000 TZS'000
Incorporation
Airtel Mobile Commerce Kenya Cross border money Fellow 111,454 314,209
(Kenya) Limited transfer Subsidiary
Airtel Mobile Commerce Uganda Cross border money Fellow 31,795 36,743
Uganda Limited transfer Subsidiary
Airtel Tanzania PLC Tanzania Dividend and Cross Fellow - 4,226,755
Charge payable Subsidiary
Airtel Mobile Commerce Netherland Management fee Intermediate 4,850,026 5,801,852
B.V. Parent
Airtel Mobile Commerce Tanzania Share capital payable  Fellow 1,000 1,000
Tanzania Limited Subsidiary
Airtel Mobile Commerce  Netherlands  Dividend Immediate 12,368,214 -
Tanzania BV Parent
Airtel Mobile Commerce Rwanda Cross border money Fellow 76,516 -
(Rwanda) Limited transfer Subsidiary
17,439,005 10,380,559

Key management personnel are described as those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Company, directly or indirectly, including any Director of the Company.

2024 2023
TZ5'000 TZ5'000
Salaries and other short-term employment benefits 1,658,113 1,050,667

f) Directors’ remuneration

The Directors of the Company were paid fees and sitting allowances amounting to TZS 42 million during the year

(2023: 45.7 million)

46



AIRTEL MONEY TANZANIA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2024 2023
TZS'000 TZS'000
15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Trade receivables 2,172,448 3,459,153
Other receivable 3,248,677 2,376,355
Due from related parties (note 14(c}) 40,101,355 23,157,584
45,522,480 28,993,092
Expected credit loss (742,653) (3,212)
44,779,827 28,989,880
Prepaid expenses 471,863 926,483
45,251,690 29,916,363
16. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Balance held in wallets 16,465,318 28,947,293
Cash at bank 21,098,944 2,797,771
Fixed deposit - 7,529,506
Call deposit 3,500,000 -
41,064,262 39,274,570
17. SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised, Issued and fully paid-up Capital:
500,000 ordinary shares (2023: 1000 shares) of TZS 1,000 each 500,000 500,000

18.

Airtel Money shareholding structure comprised of 500,000 authorized shares (2023: 500,000 shares) of TZS 1,000 each.

Out of those 500,000 shares, Treasury Registrar of Government of Tanzania (“GoT”) has 244,510 of all the shares of
AMTL (48.9%); Airtel Mobile Commerce Tanzania BV has 254,490 of all the AMTL shares (50.9%) and Airtel Tanzania Plc

has 1,000 of all the shares of AMTL (0.2%).)

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables

Accrued expenses

Dues to employees

Due to related party (note 14(d))
Equipment supply payables
Excise duty payables
Withhaolding tax payable
VAT payable

Levy payable

Security deposits

Other payables

Dividend payable

2024 2023
TZ5'000 TZ5'000
2,656,773 9,431,756
11,405,376 13,484,876
50,297 387,873
17,439,005 10,380,559
358,589 55,697
2,440,408 2,153,170
1,370,416 1,534,286
6,116,090 4,525,212
2,449,352 2,351,641
772,771 725,986
722,264 65,369
7,543,363 -
53,324,704 45,096,425
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19,

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

DIVIDEND

During the year Directors declared an interim dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2024 of TZ5
92,780 million. The Directors propose the payment of a final dividend of TZS 30,000 million in respect of the year ended
31 December 2024, resulting in total dividend for the year ended 31 December 2024 amounting to TZS 102,080 million.
The proposed final dividend in respect of financial year ended 31 December 2024 amounting to TZS 30,000 million is
subject to approval by the shareholders.

During the year 2024, out of TZS 92,780 million dividend declared with respect to the financial year ended 31
December 2024, the Company paid interim dividend TZS 72,080 million with respect to the financial year 31

December 2024 and TZS 20,700 million final dividend with respect to the financial year ended 31 December 2023,
Total Dividend paid during the financial year 31 December 2024 TZS 80,411.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
There were no contingencies as at 31 December 2024 which may possibly result in loss to the Company (2023: Nil).

COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure contracted for at the reporting date but not recognised in the financial statements is as
follows:

Undelivered purchase orders 7 10,386 6,869

Most of the capital commitments will be funded through the available credit facilities.

ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

Airtel Money Tanzania Limited is part of the Bharti Airtel Group of Companies. The Company’s direct shareholders
are Airtel Mobile Commerce Tanzania B.V., Treasury Registrar Government of Tanzania and Airtel Tanzania PLC.
Airtel Tanzania PLC incorporated and domiciled in Tanzania and Airtel Mobile Commerce Tanzania B.V. incorporated
and domiciled in the Netherlands. Ultimate controlling entity effectively from 3 November 2017, is Bharti
Enterprises (Holding) Private Limited. It is held by private trusts of Bharti family, with Mr. Sunil Mittal’s family trust
effectively controlling the Company. The step-up parent company that produces consolidated financial statements
for public use within the Group is Airtel Africa PLC, a company incorporated and domiciled in United Kingdom.

OTHER MATTERS

On 30 June 2023 the Government issued notice to the public to amend the National Payment System (Electronic
Money Transactions levy) (Amendment Regulations) to remove levy from P2P (Person to Person) transactions.
Lewy is remained only on cash withdrawal transactions. The maximum levy chargeable was set at TZS 2,000,
equivalent to 20% of the levy charged at introduction. This decision reduces further the end-user charges and is
expected to meaningfully revive and accelerate our contribution to the financial inclusion agenda, through the use
of mobile financial services.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Where necessary comparative figure have been adjusted to conform to change in presentation in current year.
EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE YEAR END

At the date of signing the financial statements, the Directors are not aware of any other matter or circumstance

arising since the end of the financial year, not otherwise dealt with in these financial statements, which significantly
affected the financial position of the Company and results of its operations.
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